衛生署藥物辦公室 藥物註冊及進出口管制部

香港九龍南昌街 382 號公共衞生檢測中心三樓

2319 8458

電話號碼 Tel. No.:

詢問處 Enquiries

(852) 2319 8458

傳真號碼 Faxline No. (852) 2803 4962

本署檔號 OUR REF.: DH DO PRIE/7-30/15

(來函請敍明此檔案號碼)

(IN REPLY PLEASE QUOTE THIS FILE REF.)

Dear Healthcare Professionals,



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DRUG OFFICE DRUG REGISTRATION AND IMPORT/EXPORT CONTROL DIVISION

3/F., Public Health Laboratory Centre, 382 Nam Cheong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

23 February 2018

Clarithromycin (Biaxin): FDA Drug Safety Communication - Potential increased risk of heart problems or death in patients with heart disease

Your attention is drawn to the US Food and Drug Administration's (FDA) announcement that FDA is advising caution before prescribing the antibiotic clarithromycin (Biaxin) to patients with heart disease because of a potential increased risk of heart problems or death that can occur years later. FDA's recommendation is based on a review of the results of a 10-year follow-up study of patients with coronary heart disease from a large clinical trial that first observed this safety issue.

The large clinical trial, called the CLARICOR trial, observed an unexpected increase in deaths among patients with coronary heart disease who received a two-week course of clarithromycin that became apparent after patients had been followed for one year or longer. There is no clear explanation for how clarithromycin would lead to more deaths than placebo. Some observational studies also found an increase in deaths or other serious heart-related problems, while others did not. All the studies had limitations in how they were designed. Of the six observational studies published to date in patients with or without coronary artery disease, two found evidence of long-term risks from clarithromycin, and four did not. Overall, results from the prospective, placebo-controlled CLARICOR trial provide the strongest evidence of the increase in risk compared to the observational study results. Based on these studies, FDA is unable to determine why the risk of death is greater for patients with heart disease.

As a result, FDA added a new warning about this increased risk of death in patients with heart disease, and advised prescribers to consider using other antibiotics in such patients. FDA also added the study results to the clarithromycin drug labels. As part of FDA's usual ongoing safety monitoring of drugs, FDA is continuing to monitor safety reports in patients taking clarithromycin.

Healthcare professionals should be aware of these significant risks and weigh the benefits and risks of clarithromycin before prescribing it to any patient, particularly in patients with heart disease and even for short periods, and consider using other available antibiotics. Healthcare professionals should also advise patients with heart disease of the signs and symptoms of cardiovascular problems, regardless of the medical condition treating with clarithromycin.

Please refer to the following website in FDA for details:

 $\underline{https://www.fda.gov/Safety/MedWatch/SafetyInformation/SafetyAlertsforHumanMedicalPro}\\ \underline{ducts/ucm597862.htm}$

In Hong Kong, there are 52 registered pharmaceutical products containing clarithromycin, and are prescription-only medicines. So far, the Department of Health (DH) has received 8 cases of adverse drug reaction related to clarithromycin, of which one case was related to cardiac arrest. In light of the above FDA's announcement, the matter will be discussed by the Registration Committee of the Pharmacy and Poisons Board. Healthcare professionals are advised to balance the risk of possible adverse effects against the benefit of treatment.

Please report any adverse events caused by drugs to the Pharmacovigilance Unit of the DH (tel. no.: 2319 2920, fax: 2319 6319 or email: adr@dh.gov.hk). For details, please refer to the website at Drug Office under "ADR Reporting": http://www.drugoffice.gov.hk/adr.html. You may wish to visit the Drug Office's website for subscription and browsing of "Drug News" which is a monthly digest of drug safety news and information issued by Drug Office.

Yours faithfully,

(Joseph LEE)

for Assistant Director (Drug)